

The parties reserve the right to correct inadvertent errors and omissions. Where no reference is made to a specific Article or Section thereof, such Article and Section are to continue as in the current Western Pennsylvania Supplement Agreement, as applied and interpreted during the life of such Agreement. Additions and new language are **bold and underlined**.

## **WESTERN PENNSYLVANIA SUPPLEMENT AGREEMENT**

**For the Period:**  
**August 1, 2018 2023 through July 31, 2023 2028**

covering:

[No change]

### **ARTICLE 46. UNION SHOP AND DUES**

[No change]

#### **Section 1.**

[No change]

#### **Section 2.**

[No change]

#### **Section 3.**

[No change]

### **ARTICLE 47. STEWARDS**

[No change]

### **ARTICLE 48. LEAVE OF ABSENCE**

#### **Section 1.**

[No change]

#### **Section 2. TIME OF FOR UNION ACTIVITIES**

[No change]

#### **Section 3. LEAVE OF ABSENCE**

[No change]

#### **Section 4.**

[No change]

### **ARTICLE 49. LOCAL PARCEL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE**

#### **Section 1. NO STRIKES -NO LOCKOUTS**

[No change]

#### **Section 2. GRIEVANCES**

[No change]

#### **Section 3. APPROVAL BY THE TEAMSTERS NATIONAL NEGOTIATING COMMITTEE**

#### **Section 4. ILLEGAL STRIKES**

#### **Section 5. (C)**

(C) A grievance to be heard by the UPS West PA. Joint Council 40 Grievance Committee must be put in writing and submitted to the secretary seven (7) workdays before the meeting of the Joint Area Grievance Committee. The parties further agree that no grievance or grievances, unless mutually agreed shall be discussed except those which have been received by the secretary of the UPS West PA. Joint Council 40 Grievance Committee within seven (7) workdays prior to the date of the meeting of the UPS West PA Joint Council 40 Grievance Committee. It is agreed that there shall be **three (3) a minimum of two (2) and a maximum of three (3)** representatives of United Parcel Service on each panel that hears a case. The members of the panel are to be selected from the overall UPS West PA. Joint Council 40 Grievance Committee. The decision of the majority of the panel hearing the case shall be binding on all parties. If at the completion of the scheduled session cases remain on the docket to be heard which were not postponed, the Chairmen will schedule an additional day in order to clear the docket. The scheduling of a second day will be added to the next time the Committee is scheduled to meet and will be limited to three times a year. This additional day is amendable upon agreement of the Co-Chairs.

(E) It is agreed that all grievances pertaining to matters described in this Article must be

referred to the UPS West PA. Joint Council 40 Grievance Committee. It is further agreed that all discharge cases to be heard by the committee shall be docketed first on the agenda. In the event of discharge cases only, ~~either party has the unilateral right to bypass the UPS West PA. Joint Council 40 Grievance Committee and go directly to arbitration.~~ an impartial arbitrator, one (1) from a panel of three (3), will sit as a fifth (5th) or seventh (7th) panel member of the UPS West PA. Joint Council 40 Grievance Committee. The impartial arbitrator shall render a decision on all deadlocked cases. Upon thirty (30) days' notice, either the Union or Company may request the selection of a new arbitrator. However, the present arbitrator will remain as a fifth (5th) or seventh (7th) panel member until a replacement is designated.

#### SECTION 6.

If any grievance, other than discharge, or dispute cannot be satisfactorily settled by a majority decision of the panel of the UPS West PA. Joint Council 40 Grievance Committee, then the grievance shall proceed to arbitration utilizing the following procedures:

- (A) Either party may submit writing of its intent to pursue arbitration within five (5) workdays of the receipt of the panel's deadlocked decision.
- (B) The grievance shall be submitted to the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service by either party and an arbitrator must be selected to hear the deadlocked case within thirty (30) calendar days.
- (C) Should either of the time periods not be met, except by mutual agreement, the grievance will be considered as closed.

It is agreed that the arbitrator is empowered to hear and decide the deadlocked cases even if only one (1) of the parties submits to arbitration or if one (1) of the parties fails to appear at the hearing or to present evidence. The arbitrator shall have the authority to apply the provisions of the Agreement, and to render a decision on any grievance coming before the arbitrator but shall not have the authority to amend or modify

this Agreement or establish new terms and conditions under this Agreement.

The arbitrator must render a decision within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the hearing, unless by mutual agreement. The cost of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the parties. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parties and employees involved.

In the event that the losing party fails to abide by the arbitrator's decision or that either party refuses to submit to the arbitrator's jurisdiction, the other party shall have the right to take all legal or economic recourse.

### ARTICLE 51. SENIORITY

#### Section 1.

Seniority shall be measured by the length of continuous service with the Employer. Seniority shall be on a center basis. The Employer agrees to post an updated seniority list every three (3) months in each center for that center, a copy will be sent to the Local Union by electronic mail (email) ~~by UPS Trackable Service~~. If no protest is made within thirty (30) calendar days, the list will stand as correct. Upon reaching seniority, the Company will notify the employee in writing as to their seniority date, and notify a copy will be sent to the Local Union.

#### Section 2.

[No change]

#### Section 3.

[No change]

#### Section 4.

When it becomes necessary to reduce the working force, the last employee on the center seniority list shall be laid off first, and when the force is again increased, the employees shall be returned to work in the reverse order in which they were laid off, providing they still maintain seniority as described herein and further providing the employees retained at the time of layoff, or the employees recalled at the time of recall from layoff, must be qualified to perform the work required.

Should a seniority employee be laid off for a period of five (5) consecutive workdays, ~~he~~ they shall be permitted to exercise ~~his~~ their seniority rights and replace the most junior ~~man employee~~ in ~~his~~ their classification provided he-is they are qualified to perform the work.

In the event there is no work available within the Tractor Trailer classification, the employee will be afforded the opportunity to exercise their seniority in the following manner:

1. Displace the most junior employee within their classification within their center.

2. If no work is available within their center the affected employee will then be afforded the right to displace the most junior employee within their building within their classification.

3. If no work is available within their building the affected employee will then be afforded the right to displace the most junior employee within their classification within their local union jurisdiction or;

(a) will be afforded an opportunity to qualify/requalify and displace the least senior Reg. Temp. Driver or least senior full-time employee within their original building provided they have more seniority than the employee being displaced. This provision only applies to employees assigned to facilities where their original building is further than forty (40) miles apart from #3 above. In addition, this only applies to the two (2) most senior laid off employees.

(b)

4. In the event there is no work available within the classification within the affected employee (s) local union jurisdiction the affected employee (s) will be afforded an opportunity to qualify and displace the least senior full-time employee within their original building.

The transfer shall take place on the next available workday. When work is available in ~~his~~ their original center, ~~he~~ they shall be required to return to his their original center if that work is of a permanent nature. It is understood that the seven (7) day notice of

layoff as contained in this Supplement shall not apply.

#### Section 5.

[No change]

#### Section 6.

[No change]

#### Section 7.

[No change]

#### Section 8.

### SECTION 9 - BIDDING (FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES)

#### Multiple Center Locations

##### (A) Annual Bid on Starting Times

1. In each center, a schedule of all starting times for all full-time inside employees shall be posted for bid on the second Monday in January and shall remain posted for a period of ten (10) working days.

##### (B) Delivery Driver Route Bid

1. On the second Monday in January of each year, the Employer will post a list of bid routes, including start times, for all regular full-time delivery drivers in their respective center. Where two (2) or more centers are located under one (1) roof, they will be considered separate centers for the purpose of route bidding. The routes will be posted for bid by the Employer for a period of ten (10) working days. The bids will be awarded in seniority order for that center and will go into effect and be assigned in accordance with the following:

a. Centers that have five (5) employees or less, who bid off their routes, will have up to ten (10) working days after the bid period, to effectuate and place the successful bidder on the awarded bid route.

- b. Centers that have six or more employees, who bid off of their present routes, will have in addition to the above, up to ten (10) workdays for each additional three (3) route changes.

2. Bid Routes - The Employer shall designate a minimum of 85% of the total routes as bid routes in all centers. These bids shall be posted in plain view for all employees to see. All Bid drivers will be afforded, upon request, a printed copy of a description of the delivery and pick-up area as listed on the Bid. The respective Local Union shall receive a copy of all signed bids including a list of all designated training routes. The successful bidder shall remain on that bid for a one (1) year period, unless a new job, higher classification, or permanent vacancy occurs during the interim bid year. Any driver who does not elect to take or hold a bid will work as assigned in their respective center. The Employer will designate not more than 40% of all routes as routes which will only take an A.M. break after Service commitments before 10:30 A.M. are met. Bids that are not filled during the annual bid must be filled by the least senior full-time delivery driver. Full-time bid package car drivers cannot be forced from their bid route more than five (5) days per year. Forced shall not include a mutual agreement, emergencies and those reasons listed in Article 51, Section 9.4. If an employee is forced from their bid area more than five (5) times the employee may be subject to receive one (1) hours pay at his their overtime rate for each additional occurrence above five (5). The employee will be required to notify the company after the third occurrence in grievance format in order to qualify for this payment.

3. Training Routes - In each center, 10% ±5% of the total routes bid shall be training routes. The training routes will be determined as follows: 1. The Company will designate 10% of the routes in a center as training routes before the bidding begins.; 2. ~~The last 5% of routes bid in a center that were not designated as training routes by the Company will also be considered training~~

routes. Should the Employer need additional training routes the Employer and the Union will mutually agree on what routes will be temporary training routes based on the Company's need. The addition of bidding of training routes at annual bid shall not affect or be subject to any agreements/understandings signed prior to ratification including but not limited to guaranteeing seniority list. Article 51, Section 9 (D) is not applicable to designated training routes. Successful bid drivers will be assigned to these training areas unless the routes are utilized due to different reasons including, but not limited to: skills inventory, training, etc. The remaining routes will be open for bid as described above in paragraph 2 "Bid Routes".

### 3. Route Changes

- a. Holidays - during the following holiday periods outlined below, the Employer may move employees off their respective bids due to significant volume fluctuations:

- 1.) Good Friday and the three (3) workdays following.
- 2.) The July 4th holiday and the three (3) days following.
- 3.) The day after Christmas, to extend through the New Year's Day holiday.

- b. Bid Work Availability - When bid work is not available or when delivery routes are consolidated, discontinued, or temporarily suspended, employees shall perform available delivery work as assigned. However, if the bid route would be re-established, the driver affected will retain the original bid.

- c. Absences - The following procedure shall be utilized for filling vacant bid routes due to employee absence:

- 1.) Full-time package car drivers not holding a bid route.
- 2.) Regular temporary drivers by seniority.

5. Eligibility - For the purpose of the annual bidding, all full-time delivery drivers on the seniority list and employees absent at the time

of the bid for any reason, with an established return to work date, within ninety (90) calendar days of the bid award date, will be eligible to bid. If the employee does not return within the ninety (90) day period, the employee will then work as assigned until the next bid period. The open route from above will be offered to the full-time drivers assigned to that center seniority list. If this results in another open route, that route will be offered to the remaining drivers assigned to the same center seniority list.

6. New Permanent Jobs or Vacancies - Any new job or vacancy after the annual January bid, will be filled in accordance with the language outlined under Article 51, Section 9, subparagraph (C)4: Training Programs, Part D New Permanent Jobs, Vacancies and Higher Rated Classifications.

(C) Qualifications and Training Program

1. For the purpose stated in this Agreement, "qualified" shall mean having satisfactorily completed the Company training program in that classification or having satisfactorily performed the work previously.

2. The Company training program will consist of a thirty (30) working day training period. The Employer and the employee shall both have a thirty (30) day option. If an employee disqualifies ~~him/herself themselves~~, they will not be afforded the opportunity to again qualify for a position in the same classification for a period of not less than three (3) years. If an employee is disqualified by the Employer, they will not be afforded the opportunity to requalify for a position in the same classification for a period of one (1) year.

3. Part-time employees who meet the Company's qualifications will be allowed to train for tractor-trailer openings on a six (6) for one (1) basis, when the full-time seniority list has been exhausted.

A. If, within thirty (30) working days, the employee fails to qualify or elects to disqualify ~~himself herself~~, said employee will be returned to ~~his their~~ previous job without loss of seniority. The union agrees to expedite and cooperate with such moves.

B. Employees who are covered in paragraph "A" and "B" will have exercised their bidding rights for a period of one (1) year.

4. Training Programs

A. In keeping with the UPS policy of promotion from within, the Company agrees to

provide, at no cost to the employee, the necessary materials, equipment and instructors to help an employee desiring a promotion to a higher paying classification acquire the necessary skills to qualify. The employee need only be willing to attend the company training programs on ~~his~~ their own time.

B. Employees who are interested in qualifying for promotion to a higher paying classification, shall notify the Employer. Such employees in seniority order, will be permitted to attend the Company training program which will be established periodically when the Employer determines there is a need to qualify additional employees in a special classification. It is understood that if no employee requests training in a classification in a center and a job occurs the Company may fill that job by hiring from the outside. The Company will use this qualified list to fill openings created by the development of new jobs or permanent vacancies, and will assign the next qualified employee in seniority order.

C. After being transferred to a higher paying classification the employee shall remain on that job for a minimum of one (1) year.

(D) New Permanent Jobs, Vacancies and Higher Rated Classifications.

1. In the event a new permanent job, vacancy or a higher rated classification exists in a center within a multiple center location, employees in any other center within that location in the order of their seniority and provided they are qualified, shall have the right to transfer to that center and their seniority shall be dovetailed into the new center. Such selection will be held for at least one (1) year.

2. The vacancy created by the transfer of the successful bidder will be posted. Employees in any other center within that location in the order of their seniority and provided they are qualified shall have the right to transfer to that center and their seniority shall be dovetailed into the new center. Such selection will be held for at least one (1) year.

3. The opening created by this move will be filled by the company.

4. A new permanent job or vacancy shall be considered one that has been in existence for thirty (30) working days except that all jobs added in November and December shall be considered to be temporary jobs.

5. In accordance with Article 22, Section 2, when a vacancy occurs in an Article 22.2 position due to retirement, a sustained

discharge, or resignation, that job will be posted within ten (10) working days of the employee's official separation date or upon receipt of a sustained discharge.

(E) When bid work is not available or when delivery or work areas are consolidated, discontinued or temporarily suspended, employees shall perform available work as assigned.

(F) Employees do not have the right to select any specific unit, load or sort.

(G) Definition of Duties

1. The duties of the job classification "package handler" have been specified by the Company as follows:

"Loads and unloads vehicles and other devices. May perform other duties incidental to loading or unloading such as, but not limited to, elementary sorting (splits), checking pre-sorted packages, preparing packages for shipping."

2. The duties of the job classification "sorter" have been specified by the company as follows:

"Sorts from memory, either physically or by marking directly, to any intrastate center (including unit and route where required) and/or any interdistrict feeder point served by the Company."

"To remain in the 'sorter' classification an employee must satisfactorily pass the periodic sorter tests or audits for accuracy and quantity".

(H) Extra Work

In each center, preference shall be given to the employees in seniority order to the extra work available after he they has have completed his their day's work, provided that such employees are available at such times as the work is assigned and are qualified to perform the work required.

(I) The movement of all United Parcel Service vehicles which are progressing packages will be by bargaining unit employees, except for specific exceptions already listed in this contractual Agreement.

Tractor-Trailer Center

1. A tractor-trailer run is defined as one which involves four (4) hours or more of tractor-trailer driving per day, feeding packages from center to center, center to hub, hub to center or hub to hub, and any other work involving tractor/trailer pickup and delivery.

2. Twice each year, on February 15th and August 15th, all tractor-trailer runs will be posted for bid and will remain posted for two

(2) weeks. February 15th and the August 15th bids in the tractor-trailer center will be subject to bid by all present tractor-trailer drivers and those on the qualified tractor-trailer list. Runs will be awarded according to seniority and will become effective the first Monday thereafter. For the purpose of bidding, all active employees on the seniority list and employees absent at the time of the bid for any reason, with an established return to work date, within ninety (90) calendar days of the bid award date, will be eligible to bid. If the employee does not return within the ninety (90) day period, the employee will then work as assigned until the next bid period. The open route from above will be offered to the full-time drivers assigned to that center seniority list. If this results in another open route, that route will be offered to the remaining drivers assigned to the same center seniority list. One week prior to the bidding period, all jobs will be posted for review. A total of ten percent (10%) of the employees will bid each day of the bid process. All employees shall bid on their assigned day; otherwise, their bid will be made from the jobs available at the time of their bid. Drivers who elect not to take a bid will be placed on the qualified list.

3. Temporary reductions such as those experienced after Christmas shall not interrupt the semi-annual bids. Seniority employees shall be provided work within the tractor-trailer classification until their bid job returns. The bottom employee on the feeder center seniority list shall perform available work as assigned until the work force is increased or be subject to the appropriate layoff article.

4. Should an employee's bid run not operate on some particular day when it normally would, they will be paid for that day unless the Company notifies the employee before their scheduled starting time that the run will not operate.

5. A. If a run is permanently discontinued, the employee who had that run may choose any run the employee desires in their seniority order.

B. For the purposes of this Agreement, permanently discontinued is one that has not operated for thirty (30) working days.

C. The employee displaced by this move may choose any other run in their seniority order.

D. The employee displaced by this move may choose any other run in their seniority order.

**E. The employee displaced by this move may choose any other run in their seniority order**

F. The employee displaced by this move may elect to displace the bottom employee on the tractor-trailer center seniority list, or become part of the tractor-trailer qualified list.

6. A separate list to be known as the tractor-trailer qualified list will be maintained. This qualified list will consist of qualified tractor-trailer drivers on the tractor trailer center seniority list not holding bid runs. The employees on this qualified list will be able to exercise their seniority for jobs in the tractor-trailer center at the February 15th and the August 15th semi-annual bids. Their seniority shall dovetail into the tractor-trailer center.

A. Any new permanent job or vacancy or open bid runs will be subject to bid by any employee on the tractor trailer center seniority list.

B. A new permanent job or vacancy shall be considered one that has been in existence for thirty (30) working days except those jobs added in the months of November and December.

C. The vacancy created by this move will be filled by the company.

D. The seniority of each successful bidder will be dovetailed in the feeder center.

7. An employee placed on the tractor-trailer qualified list shall remain on that list until:

A. They no longer qualify as a tractor-trailer driver.

B. They refuse available tractor-trailer work. An employee who refuses available Tractor-Trailer work will be disqualified for a period of not less than two (2) years.

8. The company reserves the right to change runs.

A. In the event the company makes a permanent change of over one (1) hour **and thirty (30) minutes** on any run, or permanently changes the destination of a run that results in a loss of overtime of one half (1/2) hour or more, the affected employee may choose any other run they desire in their seniority order. Permanent, for the purpose of this paragraph, is defined as a change in a run lasting for more than thirty (30) working days.

B. The employee replaced by this move may choose any run they desire in their seniority order.

C. The employee replaced by this move may choose any run they desire in their seniority order.

**D. The employee replaced by this move may choose any run they desire in their seniority order.**

E. The employee displaced by this move may elect to displace the bottom employee on the tractor-trailer center seniority list or become part of the tractor-trailer qualified list.

Tractor-Trailer Vacation Replacement Drivers

Vacation Replacement Tractor-Trailer Drivers hired in April, May, June, July, August, and September, shall not gain seniority unless they are worked in the month of October of the year in which they are hired as a Vacation Replacement Tractor-Trailer Driver.

These employees will be hired on a year-to-year basis and must reapply yearly to be considered for employment as a Vacation Replacement Driver.

After working thirty (30) days in an eighty (80) calendar day period, the top twenty-five percent (25%) of the total Vacation Replacement Drivers hired in a given year will be given Preferred Vacation Replacement Driver status.

A Preferred Vacation Replacement Driver will be afforded tractor-trailer work prior to non-preferred vacation replacement drivers. The preferred Vacation Replacement Driver will be afforded work opportunity, when work is available once in any twenty-four (24) hour period according to the Company's work schedule. If unavailable for work when called, the vacation replacement tractor-trailer driver will lose preferred status.

The Company may utilize peak season feeder drivers from January 1st through January 15th, with the days worked not counting towards the acquisition of seniority.

**Tractor-Trailer School**

To qualify for attendance at the tractor-trailer school, an employee must have a minimum of one (1) year safe driving for the year preceding their application to attend the school.

The Employer will determine whether an employee is qualified to drive tractor-trailer.

If an employee disqualifies **him/herself themselves**, they will not be afforded the opportunity to again qualify for a period of not less than three (3) years. If an employee is disqualified by the Employer, they will not be afforded the opportunity to drive tractor trailer for a period of not less than one (1) year.

New feeder driver openings or vacancies will be filled from the list of qualified employees in

the order of their seniority. In the event no employee on the list of qualified employees elects to fill an opening, the least senior employee who is qualified for tractor-trailer driving must fill the opening.

1. In the event a new permanent job or vacancy exists in a classification with a higher hourly rate, employees in the order of their seniority and provided they are qualified shall have the right to move into such classifications. A new permanent job shall be considered one that has been in existence for thirty (30) working days except that all jobs added in November and December shall be considered to be temporary jobs.

2. If during the year a vacancy or new permanent job occurs within the operating center in the package driver classification, tractor drivers in seniority order will be offered the opportunity to select said job if qualified to perform the work available. If the employee selects such a vacancy or new job, they shall remain in the new job for one (1) year.

4. When a vacancy or new permanent job occurs in the tractor driver classification, employees in that classification, in the order of their seniority within the operating center, shall be permitted to select such job. If such an employee accepts the open job, then the vacancy thus created shall be filled from the list of qualified tractor drivers by seniority. The least senior employee from the qualified list must fill the vacancy. The vacancy created by the employee moving from the qualified list shall be filled by the Employer.

## **ARTICLE 52. DISCHARGE OR SUSPENSION**

[No change]

## **ARTICLE 53 MEAL PERIOD**

[No changes]

## **ARTICLE 54 PAID FOR TIME**

[No changes]

## **ARTICLE 55 WAGES AND HOURS**

### **Section 2 HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME**

(E) The Company may, by the approval and agreement of the local union institute four (4) ten (10) hour days for feeder runs. The Company shall continue its effort to reduce overtime. If the review does not indicate that progress is being made in the reduction of assigned hours of work, the following language shall apply:  
"An employee shall have the right to file a grievance if the Company has continually caused them to work over nine hours, forty minutes per day."  
If the grievance cannot be resolved at the Local Union level, it will be referred to the UPS West PA. Joint Council 40 Grievance Committee for settlement. This procedure will not apply in the peak season of November or December nor in any other classification other than package car driver.

(F) An employee may request an eight (8) hour assigned day for bona fide personal reasons. There must be one (1) weeks written notice of the date requested and not more than one (1) request per employee per month will be honored.

No more than one (1) employee in any center shall be granted such request at any one time.

This procedure will not apply in November and December and will only apply to package drivers and full-time inside employees.

### **Section 3. WAGES AND HOURS**

(B) Emergency Defined - The Employer may immediately suspend the agreed upon notice of layoff for the duration of an emergency, beyond the Employer's control, which compels an interruption or delays in operation when the emergency is caused by pandemic, strikes, sleet or snowstorms, ice, flood or fire, or similar catastrophe.



## SECTION 4. WESTERN PENNSYLVANIA AREA WAGE SCHEDULE

Classification	8/1/2018 8/1/2023	8/1/2019 8/1/2024	8/1/2020 8/1/2025	8/1/2021 8/1/2026	8/1/2022 8/1/2027
Tractor Trailer	\$37.00 <u>\$43.94</u>	\$37.75 <u>\$44.94</u>	\$38.55 <u>\$45.85</u>	\$39.45 <u>\$46.85</u>	\$40.45 <u>\$49.10</u>
Package Driver	\$36.90 <u>\$43.84</u>	\$37.65 <u>\$44.84</u>	\$38.45 <u>\$45.75</u>	\$39.35 <u>\$46.75</u>	\$40.35 <u>\$49.00</u>
Sorter -Preloader	\$36.90 <u>\$43.84</u>	\$37.65 <u>\$44.84</u>	\$38.45 <u>\$45.75</u>	\$39.35 <u>\$46.75</u>	\$40.35 <u>\$49.00</u>
Package Handler	\$35.87 <u>\$42.81</u>	\$36.62 <u>\$43.81</u>	\$37.32 <u>\$44.72</u>	\$38.32 <u>\$45.72</u>	\$39.32 <u>\$47.97</u>

### ARTICLE 56 SUNDAYS AND HOLIDAYS

#### Section 2.

The following named holidays or the days observed as such shall be recognized as legal holidays:

December 31	Labor Day
New Year's Day	Thanksgiving Day
Memorial Day	Day After Thanksgiving
Independence Day	Christmas Day

#### Martin Luther King Jr. Day

There shall be five (5) holidays for seniority employees known as personal holidays to be mutually agreed upon between the Employer and the individual. These personal days shall be taken as follows: The employee will notify the Company ten (10) days in advance of the requested personal day. The day will be awarded in seniority order. Five (5) days prior to the requested day, the employee will be notified of the employee's request. Once the day has been granted it cannot be changed unless the emergency clause is evoked or unless mutually agreed to by the employee. The five (5) holidays are to be taken during the calendar year. In package car centers and feeder centers, the Company will grant at least ~~3%~~**5%** (minimum of 1) personal days per day based on the number of active employees on the seniority list. In package car centers, the Company will also include qualified reg. temp. drivers. **The Company will grant a minimum of 1 part-time employee a personal day, per day per each seniority list.** For the purpose of this paragraph, an inactive employee will be defined as an employee on workman's compensation, disability, Military Leave, F.M.L.A. This requirement will not apply to November, December and January 1st through January 15th.

A new seniority employee hired after July 31, 1987 will be eligible for personal holidays after the employee has been on the seniority list for one (1) year. After one (1) year, employees will

receive all five (5) personal holidays. In the event that an employee elects not to take their personal holidays by the end of the personal holiday period, they shall be paid eight (8) hours at their straight time rate for each unused personal holiday.

A new seniority employee hired after July 31, 1997 will be eligible for personal holidays in the following manner:

Seniority date plus 12 months will receive two (2) Personal Holidays.

Seniority date plus 24 months will receive full contractual allotment.

Employees hired after December 19, 2007, will be eligible for personal holidays in the following manner:

Seniority date plus 12 months — One (1) personal holiday.

Seniority date plus 24 months — Three (3) personal holidays.

Seniority date plus thirty- six (36) months — full contractual allotment.

Part-time employees shall receive one-half (1/2) holiday benefits four (4) hours pay for all holidays. The employee must be on the payroll to receive this benefit. A part-time employee who does not work on the holiday, but who has worked forty-five (45) hours in the thirty (30) consecutive workdays immediately preceding the holiday shall be entitled to four (4) hours at the straight time rate for such holiday. All part-time employees hired after August 1, 2013, must work the regular scheduled workday which immediately precedes the holiday and all part-time employees hired after August 1, 2018, must work the regular scheduled workday which immediately precedes and follows the holiday in order to be eligible for holiday pay, except in cases of proven illness, where the employee was scheduled off, placed on lay off, was on vacation, was off due to a death in the family covered by Article 62 or was on an approved personal holiday. Employees will have the right to deposit unused personal holidays into the Teamsters UPS National 401 (k) Tax Deferred Savings Plan at the end of the personal holiday pay period, in compliance with all Internal Revenue Codes and E.R.I.S.A.

Seniority employees with more than six (6) months of seniority, upon mutual agreement, who have accumulated five (5) personal holidays, may elect to use this five (5) day period as a vacation week Monday through Friday. The rate of pay for this optional week will be forty (40) hours at straight time for a full-time seniority employee and twenty (20) hours at straight time for a part-time employee.

#### Section 3.

[No changes}

#### Section 4.

[No changes}

#### Section 5.

[No charges]

#### Section 6.

## Section 7.

(No charges)

### ARTICLE 57 VACATIONS

(D)

(A) Employees hired prior to August 1, 1987 will have their first year of vacation prorated. Those employees hired after July 31, 1987, must be on the seniority list for one (1) year prior to receiving any vacation benefits. Thereafter, the employees will follow all vacation requirements and selection as applies to all others in the bargaining unit.

1. Each employee with a record of continuous employment for one (1) year or more but less than two (2) years shall receive one (1) week's vacation with pay.

2. Each employee with a record of continuous employment of two (2) years or more but less than ten (10) years shall receive two (2) weeks' vacation with pay.

3. Each employee with a record of continuous employment of ten (10) years or more but less than fifteen (15) years shall receive three (3) weeks' vacation with pay.

4. Each employee with a record of continuous employment of fifteen (15) years or more but less than twenty (20) years shall receive four (4) weeks' vacation with pay.

5. Each employee with a record of continuous employment of twenty (20) years or more but less than twenty-five (25) years shall receive five (5) weeks' vacation with pay.

6. Each employee with a record of continuous employment of twenty five (25) years or more shall receive six (6) weeks' vacation with pay.

7. December 31 shall be the eligibility date for all employees for vacation purposes. Employees who are hired between January 1 and May 1 shall be credited with the previous December 31 as their anniversary date for vacation purposes only.

(B) Vacations are to be scheduled any time during the time from January 1 up to and including the week of Thanksgiving and December 26 to December 31 of each year. Employees are to select their vacation period in the order of seniority. No employee shall accept vacation pay in lieu of vacation with the following exception: An employee with four (4) or more weeks of vacation may request one (1) week of pay in lieu of vacation. This option must be determined during the vacation selection period. Payment for this week will be made with the employee's first week of vacation pay. Vacation pay shall not be less than 45 hours' pay at the employee's regular rate of pay as set in Article 55, or for two (2) year employees, 90 hours' pay, or for ten (10) year employees, 135 hours' pay, or for fifteen (15) year employees, 180 hours' pay, or for twenty (20) year employees, 225 hours' pay or for twenty-five (25) year employees, 270 hours' pay. Part-time employees, if qualified, shall receive one-half (1/2) vacation benefits. One-half (1/2) vacation benefits shall mean four (4) hours straight time pay per day.

Tractor-trailer drivers who are bid or assigned double trailers will receive forty cents (.40) times forty-five straight time hours for vacation.

(C) All employees must receive their vacation pay before taking vacation.

(D) A list of employees who are to receive vacations should be posted in all centers. Vacation lists shall be posted October 1 ~~November 1~~ and completed by Thanksgiving Day ~~December 25~~ for selection of vacation weeks. Employees shall select vacation weeks in seniority order. Vacations are to be taken seven (7) consecutive days as of the Employer's pay week, and for two (2) year employees, either fourteen (14) consecutive days or two (2) seven (7) day periods, and for ten (10) year employees, either twenty-one (21) consecutive days or three (3) seven (7) day periods and employees with fifteen (15) years' service shall receive either twenty-eight (28) consecutive days or four (4) seven (7) day periods, and employees with twenty (20) years' service shall receive either thirty-five (35) consecutive days or five (5) seven (7) day periods and employees with twenty-five (25) years' service shall receive either forty-two (42) consecutive days or six (6) seven (7) day periods. Time selected to be mutually agreed to by the employee and the Employer.

(E) A minimum of 15% of the eligible employees, by center, by classification shall be entitled to select vacation during the months of May, June, July and August.

The application of the 15% will be applied as follows:

Number of Employees

1-10	1
11-16	2
17-23	3
24-30	4
31-36	5
37-43	6

A minimum of 5% of all eligible feeder drivers shall be entitled to select vacation during the months of February and March.

(F) To determine the minimum of 15% eligible employees in the package driver classification, regular temporary drivers receiving full-time pay for their vacations, will be added by center to the list of eligible full-time drivers. This cumulative list will then be used to determine the minimum number of employees entitled to select vacations, by center, in the months of May, June, July, and August.

(G) Eligible employees upon mutual agreement who have accumulated at least five (5) sick days and/or five (5) personal holidays may elect to use these five (5) day periods as a vacation week Monday through Friday. The rate of pay for these optional vacation weeks will be forty (40) hours of straight time pay for seniority full-time employees and twenty (20) hours of straight time pay for a seniority part-time employee. The employee is only permitted to take one (1) optional week utilizing sick leave and one (1) optional week utilizing personal holidays in anyone (1) contract year period.

(H) Absence of less than sixty (60) workdays in the aggregate due to lack of business or illness shall not be construed as interrupting the yearly work service of such employees. Absence from work because of a compensable injury shall not be construed as interrupting the yearly working service of an employee. Employees who are absent more than sixty (60) workdays for the reasons stated herein shall receive pro-rata vacation and pay based on their earned vacations as of the prior December 31.

The pro-rata provisions of this Article shall also apply to all employees who terminate their employment with their Employer between January 1 and December 31.

**(I) Vacation Replacement Drivers**

The Employer shall have the right to hire vacation replacements. Vacation replacements hired in May, June, July, and August shall not gain seniority unless they are worked after September 1. Employees worked after September 1 shall have their time count towards acquisition of seniority as provided for elsewhere in this Agreement; however, their seniority dates shall be the first day worked after September 1. If the Employer recalls these employees, it must continue to comply with the part-time 6 for 1 ratio as provided for elsewhere in this Agreement. Upon agreement of the Local Union, part-time employees may work as full-time vacation replacements under the terms of this provision and still retain their seniority as part-time employees.

The Company may utilize qualified part-time employees to work as part-time employees to cover full-time inside employees while on vacation. Pay will be straight time up to eight (8) hours and then overtime after eight (8).

**ARTICLE 58 HEALTH AND WELFARE AND LIFE INSURANCE**

[No changes]

**ARTICLE 59 PENSION**

[No changes}

**ARTICLE 60 PART-TIME EMPLOYEES HEALTH AND WELFARE**

{No changes]

**ARTICLE 61 PART-TIME EMPLOYEES PENSION**

**ARTICLE 61- PART-TIME EMPLOYEES PENSION**

Effective December 17, 1976, the Employer shall provide pension benefit coverage to part-time employees under the terms and conditions as may be contained in the U.P.S. Pension Plan as required by law.

The Company and the Union agree that they will undertake to attempt to establish appropriate reciprocity agreements to protect the pension rights of employees. Effective August 1, 1987, the Company and the Union agree that employees represented by the International Brotherhood of Teamsters and covered by the UPS Pension Plan will receive the following improvements to the plan:

1. Participation - The hours of service required have been reduced from one thousand (1,000) hours to seven hundred fifty (750) hours in any one calendar year.

2. Vesting Year - The hours of service required for vesting is reduced from one thousand (1,000) hours to seven hundred fifty (750) hours in a calendar year.

Current employees who are or were participants in the plan will be given past vesting credit for all previous years they have worked seven hundred fifty (750) hours.

3. Service Credit - The hours needed to obtain a service credit year have been reduced from eighteen hundred (1,800) hours to fifteen hundred (1,500) hours per year. The service credit year is used to calculate retirement benefits. (This will now amount to one (1) month of service credit for each one hundred twenty-five (125) hours worked.)

4. Monthly Benefit - The maximum monthly benefit is one thousand and one hundred dollars (\$1,100) per month.

5. Vesting - The vesting requirements will be at least five (5) years.

All part-time employees covered under this Agreement will receive the improved pension benefits as outlined in the United Parcel Service Pension Plan as specified in Article 34 Section I of the National Master Agreement.

**ARTICLE 62 DEATH IN THE FAMILY**

[No changes]

**ARTICLE 63 UNION COOPERATION**

[No changes]

**ARTICLE 64 LEASED EQUIPMENT**

[No changes]

**ARTICLE 65 OPENING SAND CLOSING OF CENTERS**

[No changes]

**ARTICLE 66 MAINTENANCE OF STANDARDS**

[No changes]

## ARTICLE 67 UNIFORMS AND PERSONAL APPEARANCE

[No changes]

## ARTICLE 68 PAY PERIOD

[No changes]

## ARTICLE 69 TIME RECORD

[No changes]

## ARTICLE 70 BREAKDOWNS AND IMPASSABLE HIGHWAYS

[No changes]

## ARTICLE 71 SICK LEAVE

[No changes]

## ARTICLE 72 PART-TIME EMPLOYEES

1. Part-time employees are defined as employees who, when reporting to work as scheduled, shall be guaranteed a minimum of three and a half (3-1/2) hours. Should any part-time employee work beyond the fifth (5th) hour, they shall receive one and one half (1-1/2) times their hourly rate for all hours in excess of five (5). Should any part-time employee double out on another shift other than their regularly scheduled shift, they will be guaranteed a minimum of two (2) hours on the shift they are doubling on. Seniority part-time employees who are required to work a 6th or 7th punch will be paid time and one-half (1 1/2) for all hours worked, seniority part-time employees who are required to work a 7th punch will be paid double time (2) for all hours worked, provided the employee has worked a minimum of seventeen and one-half (17 1/2) hours the other five (5) days in the current week.

2. Part-time employees transferring to full-time jobs: after the completion of the job selection procedure outlined in this supplement, the resulting opening will be filled as follows:

The permanent new job or permanent vacancy resulting from the procedure outlined above will be posted for a period of five (5) working days. After the bid is awarded, the new position will start the following Monday. Part-time employees with one (1) or more years seniority may bid on a full-time opening in their building in all months, except November and December, providing they meet the same requirements as applicants for that full-time job. The job will be awarded to the senior bidding part-time employee.

The employee awarded the job must satisfactorily complete a thirty (30) working day training period. An employee who fails to qualify shall not be allowed to bid for one (1) year for the job the employee was disqualified for. The above procedure will be applied on an alternating, six (6) for one (1) basis (e.g., for every seven (7) jobs, six (6) will be filled as outlined above and the other from applicants from other sources).

Part-time employees successfully transferring to full-time jobs will be considered as newly hired full-time employees and will be added to the appropriate seniority list. Their seniority date will be the day of the transfer.

For vacation and retirement purposes, the employee shall receive additional seniority credit equal to all time worked as a part-time employee.

3. Part-time employees will work off the part-time employee seniority list at each center.

4. The Company agrees that full-time regular temporary drivers will be used to cover absentees, overflow work and vacations. The number of regular temporary drivers will be determined in each center by a review of the absentee record as well as the weekly volume patterns that might require overflow coverage and vacation requirements. Regular temporary jobs will be filled by part-time employees who wish to transfer to full-time driving jobs as outlined in Article 72. A laid-off regular temporary driver shall have the right to displace the most junior part-time employee in that center when no regular extra work is available. Regular temporary drivers shall continue to accrue part-time seniority. Seniority part timers shall continue to receive paid for time not worked at their appropriate part-time progressive wage rate. If a regular temporary driver successfully qualifies for regular full-time employment, they will not be required to advance through the driver full-time progression rate a second time and full-time benefits will begin when they successfully transfer to seniority full-time status. Regular temporary drivers will not work should a qualified full-time package driver be laid off. Regular temporary drivers who drive two hundred twenty-five (225) working days, although still on the part-time seniority list, will receive full-time pay for vacations, holidays, funeral leave, jury duty, and sick days. All Regular temporary drivers will select their vacations from the appropriate full-time vacation schedule. They will select their vacations after the full-time employees have selected. The regular temporary drivers will then select their vacations in seniority order. If a part-time employee disqualifies him/herself themselves as a regular temporary driver during the qualification period, they will not be afforded the opportunity to again qualify for a period of not less than three (3) years. If an employee is disqualified by the Employer, they will not be afforded the opportunity to requalify again for a period of not less than one (1) year.

The Top 80% or at least one (1) Regular Temporary Driver in each Center, whichever is greater unless there are none available will work before any vacation replacement driver or Peak Season drivers will be utilized.

5. Part-time employees will not be permitted to do delivery driving, feeder driving or tractor-trailer driving work. Part-time employees will be permitted to move vehicles within the confines of the Employer's property only for the purpose of avoiding delay in their work except when unassigned drivers are available in the building. When part-time employees are used in the carwash classification, they will be permitted to drive equipment to and from the carwash.

6. The Company will maintain a shift transfer list for each part-time sort. Eligible part-time employees with one (1) or more years seniority may transfer to a different shift on new job openings and permanent vacancies except during the months of November and December.

The senior employee on the list at the time of the opening will be transferred on the following Monday.

Part-time employees with six (6) months or more of seniority shall have the right to place their name on the list of employees waiting to move to a preferred job within their building as outlined elsewhere in this Agreement.

Part-time employees who elect to transfer to a different sort will not be eligible to transfer again for a period of six (6) months except in the case of a transfer to full-time employment.

7. There shall be a classification of employee called "On Area Service Personnel".

A. This classification will be recognized as bargaining unit employees under the current bargaining Agreement.

B. In the event:

1. Eight (8) hours work in the On Area Service Personnel classification or a combination of eight hours work in the On Area Service Personnel classification and inside package handling work. These employees will receive all appropriate full-time benefits.

2. A combination of less than eight (8) hours work in the On Area Service Personnel classification and inside package handling work or less than eight (8) hours work in the On Area Service Personnel classification. These employees shall receive appropriate part-time benefits.

C. The duties of the On Area Service Personnel will be the loading and processing of pickups, and delivery of packages that have been tendered to the customer, in the confines of the customers' location.

D. The On Area Service Personnel work will be offered to existing part-time employees by seniority within the jurisdiction of the Local Unions where the work is being performed.

E. The employees must qualify by meeting the requirements of Article 67 of the current Agreement.

F. The On Area Service Personnel will receive the "all others" wage rate in accordance with the current Agreement.

G. In the event an opening occurs or a new job, existing part-time employees will be offered the job in seniority order prior to any new hire. These employees will be slotted at the appropriate "all others" wage rate in accordance with their seniority.

H. Employees described above may be required to punch a timecard and will be entitled to all other provisions of the local supplement, rider and addendum such as bidding for full-time jobs and layoff provisions.

I. The employees in this classification will be kept informed of all new jobs or vacancies for which they are eligible to sign a bid.

8. Any claimed abuses of this Article with respect to the use of part-time employees shall be subject to the grievance procedure.

9. Effective 2014, any part-time employee who works an inside ground sort the day after Thanksgiving, will receive a three and one-half (3 1/2) hour guarantee and will be paid all hours worked on that ground sort at the time and one-half (1 1/2) rate of pay. This does not cover any work outlined in Article 40.

10. Any work performed on a holiday by a part-time employee will be paid at the rate of time and one-half (1 1/2) provide the employee has worked their regular scheduled workday before and after the holiday, except in cases of proven illness or unless the absence is mutually agreed to.

### **ARTICLE 73 AIR CONDITIONING**

[No changes}

### **ARTICLE 74 TRAINING AGREEMENT**

[No changes}

### **LOCAL UNION NO. 926 CAR WASH ARTICLE**

The terms of the Western Pennsylvania Supplemental Agreement shall apply to the employees represented by IBT Local Union No. 926 at the Employer's Thornburg and Beaver Avenue facilities in the classifications referenced below except on the subjects covered by this Article which shall apply to those employees, or as agreed to in writing.

It is further agreed by all parties that the following Articles, Mutual Understandings and Letters of Understanding in the WPA Supplement do not apply to employees represented by

Local 926: Article 48 (Section 4), Article 51, Article 53, Article 54 (Sections 1 & 2), Article 55 (Section 1), Article 55 (Section 2 C,D,E,F), Article 55 (Section 3), Article 56 (Sections 1 & 4), Article 57 D,E,F,H, & I, Article 64, Article 70, Article 72, Article 73, Article 74, the Mutual Understanding on page 223 of the 2008 Agreement, and the Letters of Understanding on page 224 of the 2008 Agreement.

#### Employees Covered:

The members of Local 926 shall perform all duties in the Thornburgh and Beaver Avenue facilities of the employer in the following employment categories; chasing parts, washing, simonizing, polishing, storekeeping, checking of batteries, shifting or jockeying, pumping gasoline, changing and repairing tires and tubes, handling and checking of parts, checking anti-freeze, portering, painting to include touch-up, wheels and cab areas, and such other manual work in and around garages, other than mechanical.

#### Layoff:

The Employer shall have the right to lay off any employee. In all cases of lay off, seniority within the laid off employee's classification of work, as listed in the Wage Schedule, shall prevail. Such seniority shall be based upon length of service from the day of last continuous employment with the Employer. If in the event an employee is laid off from ~~his~~ their classification, ~~he~~ they may exercise, if qualified, his their seniority to replace the least senior employee in another classification. The date of such transfer will be used to determine shift preference and vacation selection only. When work is again available in his their original classification, he they must return to that classification.

(A) In the event of a permanent layoff which is defined as being laid off in excess of five (5) workdays, one weeks' notice shall be given to said employee.

(B) In the event of a recall after lay off, seniority within the laid off employee's classification of work, as listed in the Wage Schedule, shall also prevail. That is, the last employee laid off in a given classification of work shall be the first recalled, and so on.

(C) Seniority rights of any employee shall cease after a continuous layoff of thirty-six (36) months.

(D) The Union and the Employer have jointly established a seniority list for each center by the classification of work listed in the Wage Schedule. Such Seniority list will be recognized by both parties as the basis of order of layoff and recall.

(E) Any regular employee on layoff shall be recalled when work is available in the inverse order of their seniority. The Employer will first attempt to notify such employee by telephone, messenger, or otherwise to return to work. If the Employer cannot reach the employee by these means, or, if the employee is so contacted and fails to report for work as notified, then the Employer shall notify the laid off employee by registered mail to report for work or show acceptable cause for his their failure to report.

If the recalled employee does not then report or show acceptable cause within ten (10) calendar days after the date of the mailing of the registered letter, their name will be removed from the Employer's payroll, and they will lose their status as a regular employee.

#### Bidding:

Annual bid on starting times will be posted January 1st of each year for a period of two (2) weeks. Employees may select from such posted schedule in their center seniority order.

In the event starting times in a classification are changed by more than one (1) hour, the Employer will give one (1) weeks' notice prior to such change.

If the employee's original selection is changed by more than three (3) hours that employee will have the opportunity to change shift selection.

#### Examination of Records:

The Local Union Business Agent shall have the written right to examine time sheets and any other records pertaining to the computation of compensation or fringe benefits of any employee whose pay is in dispute or records pertaining to a specific grievance.

#### Cooperation:

The Union agrees when any Local 926 member is assigned by the Employer to any work covered by this Agreement, that such employee will perform the assigned work to the best of their ability regardless of their regular classification.

#### Rubbers and Raincoats:

The Company will supply rubbers and raincoats consistent with the practice in the Beaver Ave. Facility for the employees in the Thornburgh Facility.

#### Part-Time Employees:

1. Part-time employees are defined as employees not otherwise gainfully employed who, when reporting to work as scheduled, shall receive the minimum guarantee provided in the National Master United Parcel Service Agreement. (NMUPSA) Should any part-time employee work beyond the fifth (5th) hour, they shall receive one and one-half (1 1/2) times their hourly rate for all hours in excess of five (5). This provision will not override any provision in the National Master Agreement.

2. Part-time employees transferring to full-time jobs: After the completion of the job selection procedure outlined in the respective Supplements, the resulting opening will be filled as follows:

The permanent new job or permanent vacancy resulting from the procedure outlined above will be posted for a period of five (5) days. Part-time employees with one or more years seniority may bid on a full-time opening in their building in all months, except November and December, providing they meet the same job requirements as applicants for that full-time job. The job will be awarded to the senior bidding part-time employee.

The employee awarded the job must satisfactorily complete a thirty (30) working day training period. An employee who fails to qualify shall not be allowed to bid for one (1) year for that job the employee was disqualified for.

Part-time employees successfully transferring to full-time jobs will be considered as newly hired full-time employees and will be added to the appropriate seniority list. Their seniority date will be the day of the transfer. For pay purposes their rate will be based on the new top rate of the classification into which they bid. At no time will the employee suffer any loss of hourly rate when slotted.

For vacation and retirement purposes, the employee shall receive additional seniority credit equal to all time worked as a part-time employee.

3. Part-time employees will work off the part-time employee seniority list at each Center.

4. Part-time employees will not be permitted to do any delivery driving, feeder driving or tractor trailer driving work. Part-time employees will be permitted to move vehicles within the confines of the Employer's property only for the purpose of avoiding delay in their work except when unassigned drivers are available in the building.

Where part-time employees are used in the carwash classification, they will be permitted to drive equipment to and from the carwash 5. After following the reduction of force procedure in the layoff portion of this Article the following shall apply:

After a one (1) day layoff, full-time seniority employees who may be subject to layoff may elect to displace one (1) part-time employee in Beaver Avenue or Thornburg if any part-time employees represented by Local #926 are working in these buildings. In such cases, the employee will be guaranteed three and one half (3 1/2) hours. The full-time employees will maintain their full-time wage for all hours worked. The full-time employee must also notify the operation of his or her their request to displace one (1) part-time employee at least one and one half (1 1/2) hours prior to the start of the carwash operation.

The provisions of this Section 5 shall not apply:

1. During the first three (3) days of emergencies beyond the Employer's control such as fires, flood, snowstorm, power failure, T.O.F.C. delays.

2. During strikes against UPS or other companies which require a reduction of work force.

3. The Company will attempt to schedule sufficient vacations from December 24 of any year through the second full week of the following January in order to avoid layoffs. In the event sufficient vacations have not been scheduled, the Local Union and the Company will meet to adjust the vacation schedule. Failing to agree on an adjustment, the matter shall be referred to the General President of the International Brotherhood of Teamsters and the Vice President of Labor Relations for final resolution.

4. Any claimed abuses of this Article with respect to the use of part-time employees shall be subject to the grievance procedure.

5. Twenty percent (20%) of the active full-time employees will be entitled to select vacations in the North Shore Building in the months of May, June, July, and August.

The Company may utilize qualified part-time car wash employees to cover full-time car wash employees while on vacation. Pay for these part-time car wash employees will be straight time up to eight (8) hours and then overtime after eight (8).

#### WAGES:

Wage Schedule	<del>8/1/18</del>	<del>8/1/19</del>	<del>8/1/20</del>	<del>8/1/21</del>	<del>8/1/22</del>
	<u>8/1/23</u>	<u>8/1/24</u>	<u>8/1/25</u>	<u>8/1/26</u>	<u>8/1/27</u>
Parts -	<del>\$35.39</del>	<del>\$36.14</del>	<del>\$36.74</del>	<del>\$37.84</del>	<del>\$38.84</del>
Runner	<u>\$42.44</u>	<u>\$43.44</u>	<u>\$44.35</u>	<u>\$45.35</u>	<u>\$47.60</u>
Partsman -	<del>\$35.49</del>	<del>\$36.24</del>	<del>\$37.04</del>	<del>\$37.94</del>	<del>\$38.94</del>
	<u>\$42.54</u>	<u>\$43.54</u>	<u>\$44.45</u>	<u>\$45.45</u>	<u>\$47.70</u>
Lead Partsman -	<del>\$35.78</del>	<del>\$36.53</del>	<del>\$37.33</del>	<del>\$38.32</del>	<del>\$39.23</del>
	<u>\$42.83</u>	<u>\$43.83</u>	<u>\$44.74</u>	<u>\$45.74</u>	<u>\$47.99</u>
Lube & Tireman-	<del>\$35.78</del>	<del>\$36.53</del>	<del>\$37.33</del>	<del>\$38.23</del>	<del>\$39.23</del>
	<u>\$42.83</u>	<u>\$43.83</u>	<u>\$44.74</u>	<u>\$45.74</u>	<u>\$47.99</u>
Car Wash -	<del>\$35.76</del>	<del>\$36.51</del>	<del>\$37.31</del>	<del>\$38.21</del>	<del>\$39.21</del>
	<u>\$42.81</u>	<u>\$43.81</u>	<u>\$44.72</u>	<u>\$45.72</u>	<u>\$47.97</u>

#### APPRENTICE LUBE TIREMAN

	<del>8/1/18</del>	<del>8/1/19</del>	<del>8/1/20</del>	<del>8/1/21</del>	<del>8/1/22</del>
	<u>8/1/23</u>	<u>8/1/24</u>	<u>8/1/25</u>	<u>8/1/26</u>	<u>8/1/27</u>
First Three -	<del>\$35.19</del>	<del>\$35.94</del>	<del>\$36.74</del>	<del>\$37.64</del>	<del>\$38.64</del>
Months	<u>\$42.24</u>	<u>\$43.24</u>	<u>\$44.15</u>	<u>\$45.15</u>	<u>\$47.40</u>
Second -	<del>\$35.20</del>	<del>\$36.15</del>	<del>\$36.95</del>	<del>\$37.85</del>	<del>\$38.85</del>
Three Months	<u>\$42.45</u>	<u>\$43.45</u>	<u>\$44.36</u>	<u>\$45.36</u>	<u>\$47.61</u>
Thereafter -	<del>\$36.65</del>	<del>\$36.40</del>	<del>\$37.20</del>	<del>\$38.10</del>	<del>\$39.10</del>
	<u>\$42.70</u>	<u>\$43.70</u>	<u>\$44.61</u>	<u>\$45.61</u>	<u>\$47.86</u>

#### MUTUAL UNDERSTANDINGS

1. The use of citizens band radios not to exceed five (5) watts presently permitted in all feeder road equipment, will be extended for use in package cars used as feeder equipment. Restrictions on the use of C.B. radios will be identical to the language contained in Article 18, Section 3, U.P.S.-I.B.T. Master Agreement. The use of transistor radios shall be as outlined in the Master Agreement

2. If within the future there becomes a need for full-time jockeys or shifters within the jurisdiction of any Local Union, the

Company agrees to place these jockeys or shifters on a mutually agreeable seniority list.

3. The Company agrees that when we periodically order name tags for our employees, we will order black backed name tags for supervisory personnel and brown backed name tags for hourly personnel.

4. The Company agrees to extend a fifteen (15) minute paid break to all part-time employees working for the United Parcel Service under the jurisdiction of Locals 30, 110, 249, 261, 397, 491, 538 and 585. This break is to be given during the shift and will not be forced earlier than one (1) hour after the start of the sort operation/shift.

**5. Any current regular temporary driver as of August 1, 2018, as defined in the WPA Supplement that bids into a 22.4 job will have their progression and pay rate red circled as outlined in Article 41, Section 4 of the National Master Agreement.**

#### LETTER OF AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 1, 2018

[No changes]

#### MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

November 4, 1994

As result of a discussion between the Negotiating Committee of the W. Pa. Supplemental Agreement the following language is suggested to address the Emergency Clause (Article 55 Section 3 (b) (c) (d))

1) Once the determination is made to close the operation of a Center, Hub or any facility which the employees are under the United Parcel Service W. Pa. Supplemental Agreement each Local Union and the Joint Counsel Offices will be notified immediately.

2) The Company agrees to utilize all available Management personnel in attempt to receive calls and to call employees upon the determination the facility will be closed during an emergency. **In addition the Company agrees to utilize one or more radio stations in the affected area to also inform the employees not to report to work due to the weather emergency.**

3) If the notification is made by Management one (1) hour or more prior to the starting times, the employees will not be compensated for reporting to work during a weather emergency.

4) All employees will be called back upon the end of the emergency in their seniority order. As for the Centers or operations that have feeder runs, the Company and the affected Local Union will meet to outline the procedure, they determine will best suit that locations operation. Prior to the implementation of the agreed to feeder language the W. Pa Supplemental

Negotiating Committees must review and approve the Local agreements.

5) This agreement will only pertain to a weather-related emergency. All other forms of a declared emergency will be handled as outlined in the collective bargaining agreement.

6) All areas not outlined within this memorandum of agreement pertaining to emergency situations will remain as in the collective bargaining agreement, therefore handled on an individual basis.

#### LETTER OF AGREEMENT DATED APRIL 3, 2019

United Parcel Service, Inc. ("UPS" or "Company") and the Teamsters National UPS Negotiating Committee on behalf of the Western PA Negotiating Committee ("Union") agree to the following in connection with the negotiation of the 2018-2023 Western Pennsylvania and Local 926 Car Wash Supplement ("West PA Supplement"). The parties agree that all of the terms of the first tentative Western PA Supplement for 2018-2023 will be included in the new Supplemental agreement except as follows:

1. The Memorandum of Understanding dated July 9, 2018 pertaining to a 4-10 schedule for New Stanton feeder drivers shall be included as a part of the new Supplement.

2. The overtime enhancement for part-time employees working a 6th or 7th punch will be included in this offer.

3. This paragraph shall replace the Memorandum of Agreement between the parties pertaining to pension contribution included as part of the first vote on the Western PA Supplement:

a. The parties agree, as a part of Article 34, Section 1 of the 2018-2023 National Master Agreement (NMA), that there will be up to a fifty (\$0.50) allocation to pension each year of the contract. Further, the following additional amounts will be available to the Western PA Pension Fund each year as set forth below. However, if Teamcare's allocation for years 2021 and 2022 is forty-seven (\$0.47) or forty-five cents (\$0.45) or less, respectively, than the Western PA Pension Fund will receive the amount available pursuant to Article 34, Section 1.a.

8-1-18	8-1-19	8-1-20	8-1-21	8-1-22
\$0.30	\$0.00	\$0.01	\$0.03	\$0.05

b. The hourly increases in contributions provided in paragraph a. above shall be applied in accordance with the existing Supplement and Plan documents.

c. In order to cover the cost of these increased contributions, the Union agrees that work on the day after Thanksgiving shall be at the straight time rate for full-time employees except to the extent a full-time employee exceeds his their daily guarantee. For



employees represented by Local 926, the holiday will be paid at time-and-one-half. This paragraph shall supersede the terms of the Western PA Supplement and will become effective beginning November 2022.

4. The enhancements made available through this Letter of Agreement are only available as a Company offer through May 10, 2019. If this Letter of Agreement is not accepted by the Union by May 10, 2019, it will become null and void. The Company's offer which was the subject of a vote on March 5, 2019 will become UPS' official available offer for a new tentative agreement after May 10, 2019.

#### LETTER OF AGREEMENT

United Parcel Service, Inc. ("UPS" or "Company") and the Western Pennsylvania Union Negotiating Committee (the "Union") agree to the following to become effective upon the ratification of National Master Agreement ("NMA") in its entirety.

1. Notwithstanding Article 34, Section 4, paragraphs 2 or 4 of the NMA, twenty-five cents (0.25) of the monies available for a HWPC, if any, may be reallocated to a general wage increase, for those employees who are participants in the Western Pennsylvania Teamsters & Employers Pension Fund.

2. In order to make a reallocation pursuant to paragraph 1 above, the Union must comply with the remaining provisions of Article 34, Sections 4.

#### LETTER OF AGREEMENT

United Parcel Service, Inc. ("UPS" or "Company") and the Western Pennsylvania Union Negotiating Committee (the "Union") agree to the following to become effective upon the ratification of National Master Agreement ("NMA") in its entirety.

1. Notwithstanding Article 34, Section 4, paragraphs 2 or 4 of the NMA, twenty-five cents (0.25) of the monies available for a HWPC, if any, may be reallocated to a general wage increase, for those employees who are participants in the Western Pennsylvania Teamsters & Employers Pension Fund.

2. In order to make a reallocation pursuant to paragraph 1 above, the Union must comply with the remaining provisions of Article 34, Sections 4.

#### LETTER OF AGREEMENT

United Parcel Service, Inc ("UPS" or "Company") and the Western Pennsylvania Union Negotiating Committee ( the "Union") agree to the following to become effective upon the ratification of the National Master Agreement ("NMA") in its entirety.

To the extent the Southwestern Pennsylvania and Western Maryland Area Teamsters and Employers Pension Fund duly adopts a rehabilitation plan that requires contribution rate increases for the schedule under which UPS currently participates, such contribution rate increases shall be satisfied by any monies available under Article 34 of the NMA. If the required contribution rate increases exceed the monies available under Article 34 of the NMA, the additional amount will be satisfied pursuant to the terms of Article 34, Section 1(a)(v) and the associated Memorandum of Understanding currently on page 183 of the NMA

In witness whereof the parties hereto have set their hands and seals this                      day of                      , 2019 to be effective as of August 1, 2018, except as to those areas where it has been otherwise agreed between the parties:

## **NEGOTIATING COMMITTEE**

For the employees:

### **WESTERN PENNSYLVANIA UNION NEGOTIATING COMMITTEE**

#### **Kevin M. Schmitt, Chairman**

Adam Augustine	Betty Rose Fischer
Gino Bosetti	Arthur Hoak
Dean Burge	Michael Leckwart
Harold Close	Paul "Dino" Taormina
Rocco Di Filippo	Frank Uglik
Joe Douglas	Darrell Watt
Vito Dragone, Jr.	Doug Youngs

#### **Rank and File Members:**

Michael Abbott	Mark Kerr Jr.
Logan Ban	Paul Krause
Mike Bonanni	Kevin Langer
Brian Dunn	Dave Livingstone
Keith D'Antonio	Joe McIntosh
Scott Grieser	Kirk Mueller
Jon Hawthorn	Stacy Pentz
Brad Holovka	Richie Siget
Michael Joyce	

### **United Parcel Service WESTERN PENNSYLVANIA NEGOTIATING COMMITTEE**

#### **Duane Ammons, Chairman**

Matt Hoffman	Bob Cowie
Sean Pruchnic	Levi Fletcher
Eileen Warner	Zach Wise
Tim Berkebile	John Oravetz
Tim Bell	Frank Zupanc
Steven Bell	
<del>Kim Van Utrecht</del>	<del>Rodney Shreve</del>
<del>Eric Bringe</del>	<del>Mike Karnish</del>
<del>Lee Frye</del>	<del>Brittany Dorko</del>
<del>Tom McCready</del>	<del>Allyson Panzella</del>